1986

Kelly Renee Peterson v. Jerry Allen Peterson : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES PRESENTED ON APPEAL

I. DID THE LOWER COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY ORDERING THE PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT AND HER TWO MINOR DEPENDENTS OUT OF THE FORMER RESIDENCE OF THE PARTIES AND FORCING THEM TO SEEK SHELTER ELSEWHERE?

II. DID THE LOWER COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY CONDITIONING ITS ORDER TO DEFENDANT TO PAY SUPPORT PAYMENTS UPON WHETHER DEFENDANT CONTINUES TO DRAW THE SAME LEVEL OF UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION?

III. DID THE LOWER COURT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY REFUSING TO AWARD PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT THE USE OF THE PARTIES WASHER AND DRYER?

IN THE SUPREME COURT
OF THE STATE OF UTAH

KELLY RENEE PETERSON,	:	
Plaintiff/Appellant,	:	
vs.	:	Civil No. 860120
JERRY ALLEN PETERSON,	:	
Defendant/Respondent.	:	

STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 10, 1981, the parties hereto were married (Tr. at 18). Subsequently, two children were born to them (Tr. at 18). The parties to this action maintained one residence throughout their marriage at Scipio, Utah (Tr. at 8, lines 6-9; Tr. at 19, lines 1-5). This home, together with a 10.5 acre tract upon which it was located, was brought into the marriage by defendant/respondent (hereinafter "defendant") (Tr. at 61, lines 22-23). Defendant testified that he felt the value of the three-bedroom home (Tr. at 23, line 7) and 10.5 acres was \$26,000 (Tr. at 57-58); plaintiff/appellant (hereinafter "Kelly") felt the home and land were worth \$40,000 (Tr. at 56, lines 1-5). At the time of trial, Kelly was attempting to keep her small business

in Nephi from failing (Tr. at 53, lines 103). The business has since failed.

Kelly testified at trial that she needed the home to provide a place to live for herself and the two minor children of the parties (Tr. at 38, line 25), and that she filed a divorce only after defendant requested her to do so (Tr. at 45, lines 21-25) and after she knew that defendant was seeing another woman (Tr. at 35).

Testimony at trial brought out that defendant was unemployed, and that his regular line of work was construction and often required that defendant reside away from the Scipio home (Tr. at 59, 60; Tr. at 3, line 16). Since trial, Kelly and the two minor children have left the former residence of the parties pursuant to the Divorce Decree (D.D. at 4, paragraph 10) and defendant has resided for several months in Southern California. Although Kelly's parents have a small apartment building in Nephi, Utah, any generosity on their part in asking Kelly to reside in an apartment is contingent upon a vacancy (Tr. at 40, lines 10-12).

A washer and dryer were brought into the marriage by defendant (Tr. at 33, lines 20-25) and a horse was purchased by the parties during their marriage, which defendant testified he intended to use for the children's benefit (Tr. at 63, lines 16-19). The horse has since been sold by defendant, and Kelly continues to have difficulty washing and drying the children's clothes because the washer and dryer were awarded to defendant (D.D. at 3, paragraph 7). The Divorce Decree ordered defendant

to pay \$100 per month per child as support money "[a]s long as defendant is drawing unemployment compensation" of \$830.00 per month (D.D. at 2, paragraph 4). At the time of trial, Kelly had been receiving public assistance and her circumstances since trial have necessitated continuous public assistance from the Utah State Department of Social Services since being forced out of the former residence of the parties in June, 1986.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

U.C.A. Section 30-3-5(1) specifically suggests that the trial court has discretion to make such orders in the best interests of equity and all parties. After five years of marriage and two children, equity requires that appellant Kelly Peterson and the two children of the parties be permitted to occupy the former home and land of the parties until said children reach majority. The present order subjects Kelly Peterson to an impossible and confining situation of attempting to raise the children with only Social Services' assistance because she has little training. And the divorce decree at present purports to condition defendant's support obligation entirely on the continuation of unemployment benefits at the present level. Only a review and reversal of these orders to allow Kelly Peterson to live in the parties' former residence and a definite support requirement from defendant will correct the misunderstanding and misapplication of law in this matter.

ARGUMENT

I. THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY FORCING PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT AND HER TWO MINOR CHILDREN OUT OF THE PARTIES' FORMER RESIDENCE

AND FORCING THEM TO SEARCH ELSEWHERE FOR
SHELTER.

The applicable statute in this appeal states as follows: "When a decree of divorce is rendered, a court may include in it such orders in relation to the children, property and parties, and the maintenance and health care of the parties and children, as may be equitable." U.C.A. Section 30-3-5(1) (1979, as amended). The lower court's awarding defendant the former residence of the parties together with its surrounding real property of 10.5 acres as of June 1986, thereafter leaving plaintiff/appellant Kelly Peterson to seek shelter for herself and two small children was apparently based on the fact that said real estate was brought into the marriage by the defendant; however, the above-referenced statute specifically directs lower courts to make "such orders in relation to the children property and parties . . . as may be equitable." U.C.A. Section 30-3-5(1) (1979).

In the Utah Supreme Court case of Englert v. Englert, 575 P.2d 1274, 1276 (Utah 1978), this court took a broad view of the trial court's duty to make an equitable division of property, stating that it encompassed "all the assets of every nature possessed by the parties, wherever obtained and from whatever source derived" And in Dogu v. Dogu, 652 P.2d 1308 (Utah 1981), this court cited its earlier decision in DeRose v. DeRose, 19 Utah 2d 77, 79, 426 P.2d 221, 222 (1967) in which it held as follows:

Changes [in the trial court determination]
should be made if that seems essential to the

accomplishment of the desired objectives of the decree: that is, to make such arrangement of the property and economic resources of the parties that they will have the best possible opportunity to reconstruct their lives on a happy and useful basis for themselves and their children.

Dogu v. Dogu, supra, at 1311. The Dogu court continued that a change in the trial court's determination was required where the appellant "may be deprived of all ongoing financial support at the very time of life when she is most in need" Id. The case of Jorgensen v. Jorgenson, 667 P.2d 22 (Utah 1982) is not on point. In Jorgensen, only one child was born to the marriage, and the marriage lasted just two years. The custodial parent was not required to apply for public assistance. Id. at 23.

The appellant herein has necessarily been deprived of all ongoing financial support due to her being ordered out of the former residence of the parties, predictably losing her business opportunity, and presently being a tenant at will in her parents' apartment subject to availability. In the meantime, Kelly, our appellant, has received no assistance from defendant since the State Department of Social Services promptly takes any support payments in return for its own assistance to Kelly and her two small children. Realistically, the only benefit defendant can continue to provide Kelly during these difficult economic times where defendant is employed for only short periods of time is shelter from the elements. The home and land in Scipio is held in high regard by Kelly and the children, a stark contrast from the defendant's feelings as evidenced by the parties' respective \$40,000 and \$26,000 estimates of its fair market value. Regard-

less of the source of the property, Kelly should be awarded a one-half interest in the property or at least a right to live in the home with the children until they reach majority. This would be an equitable outcome. As it stands, Kelly and the children have no place to go and Kelly's parents are made to feel the burden of support properly attributed to defendant.

Given Kelly's education and training, or lack thereof, she will have no chance to make something of herself for the monetary benefit of her little family under present circumstances, and should be allowed to regain possession of the home and raise the children of the parties. Kelly has been subject to a misunderstanding or misapplication of Section 30-3-5(1) which has resulted in substantial prejudicial error, and requires a change in the trial court's determination.

II. THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY
MAKING DEFENDANT'S CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENTS TO
PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT CONTINGENT UPON DEFENDANT'S
MAINTAINING A CERTAIN LEVEL OF UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION.

Under the present divorce decree, defendant technically is under no obligation to make support payments to Kelly or to the Department of Social Services if his unemployment compensation should fall below \$830 per month, or if his unemployment compensation were to cease. This possibility has great impact on both Kelly and the State of Utah. If support obligations can be waived by narrow language in a divorce decree then healthy fathers can suddenly be excused from traditional

support requirements already under severe attack in our society today.

Appellant's counsel has found no cases in point regarding nebulous support obligations such as that promised defendant in the divorce decree in this matter; however, the decree at the least should be revised to require monthly payments not contingent upon employment or an unemployment compensation level.

III. THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY REFUSING TO AWARD THE USE OF THE PARTIES' WASHER AND DRYER TO PLAINTIFF/APPELLANT AS LONG AS THE PARTIES' CHILDREN ARE MINORS.