1986

Kelly Renee Peterson v. Jerry Allen Peterson : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is Plaintiff's appeal from a Decree of Divorce entered on January 27, 1986 in the Fourth Judicial District Court for Millard County, by the Honorable Cullen V. Christensen, Judge.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The parties to this action were married on January 10, 1981, and have two children: Judy Lynn, born March 12, 1982 and Jeffrey Allen, born January 19, 1984 (Tr. at 18, lines 8-10 and 24-25). The parties separated in July, 1985, and Plaintiff subsequently filed for divorce in August, 1985.

Several years prior to the marriage, Defendant and his

uncle, Hal Peterson, purchased a home and a 70-acre tract of land in Scipio, Utah together with 50 shares of Scipio Irrigation stock (Tr. at 20, lines 4-5). The property was purchased from Defendant's grandfather in 1978 for \$20,000, interest free, payable in yearly installments of \$1,000 (Tr. at 19, lines 17-25 and Tr. at 20, lines 1-3).

In 1983, Defendant entered into an oral agreement with his uncle to divide the land and stock (Tr. at 21, lines 6-9). Pursuant to the terms of the oral agreement, Defendant retained the home, 10.5 acres of land, and 5 shares of stock (Tr. at 22, lines 18-21). The uncle retained the remainder of the property and stock, and also assumed the balance of the debt owing on the property (Tr. at 8, lines 22-25).

In the lower court, Defendant was awarded the home, 10.5 acres, and the stock. Of the contested personal property, Defendant was awarded the washer and dryer he brought into the marriage as well as the truck and horse the parties acquired during the marriage. Plaintiff was awarded the camera, the inventory in her gift shop, the 1983 Ford and the motorcycle, all of which were acquired during the marriage (Decree at 3).

The lower court also awarded Plaintiff child support of \$100 per month per child (Decree at 2). This amount

reflected the fact that at the time of the divorce, Defendant's sole source of income was \$830 per month from unemployment compensation (Findings at 3). The court, however, also took into consideration Defendant's historical earning ability, and therefore ordered Defendant to pay \$185 per child per month as child support when he "becomes gainfully employed whereby he produces income approximating that customarily earned by him" (Decree at 2-3).

Plaintiff appeals the award of the real property and washer/dryer to Defendant as well as the child support structure.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

The lower court was well within its discretion in awarding Defendant both the real and personal property he brought into the marriage. The award of the increased value of the property to Defendant was proper because Plaintiff did not contribute substantially to the value of the property, she received the larger percentage of the marital property, and Defendant was ordered to pay a larger percentage of the marital debts.

The award of child support in this case is most favorable to the Plaintiff. The court took into consideration Defendant's historical earnings in ordering that his child support obligation would increase when he

becomes gainfully employed. Thus, the court was actually looking out for the best interests of the Plaintiff and the children.

Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate an abuse of discretion by the trial court, therefore her appeal should be dismissed and Defendant should be awarded his costs.

ARGUMENT

I. PROPERTY DISTRIBUTION MADE WAS WELL
WITHIN TRIAL COURT'S DISCRETION

It is an established principle that the trial court is afforded considerable discretion "in adjusting the financial and property interests of parties to divorce . . . and its actions are cloaked with a presumption of validity." Gill v. Gill, 718 P.2d 779, 780 (Utah 1986). See also Burnham v. Burnham, 716 P.2d 781 (Utah 1986); King v. King, 717 P.2d 715 (Utah 1986); Argyle v. Argyle, 688 P.2d 468 (Utah 1984); and Savage v. Savage, 658 P.2d 1201 (Utah 1983). It is the appellant's burden to overcome the presumption of validity, and to do so, the appellant must show that "there was a misunderstanding or misapplication of the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or the evidence clearly preponderated against the finding; or such serious inequity has resulted as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion."

Burnham at 782. See also Berger v. Berger, 713 P.2d 605 (Utah 1985); Pope v. Pope, 580 P.2d 752 (Utah 1978); and English v. English, 565 P.2d 409 (Utah 1977).

In the present case, Plaintiff plays upon the emotions of this Court, but fails to meet the requirements necessary to overcome the presumption of validity afforded the trial court.

Plaintiff argues that the lower court abused its discretion by refusing to award her the parties' residence. The award of the residence to Defendant was well within the considerable discretion afforded the trial court.

There is no set formula for dividing the marital estate, but certain factors may be relied upon by the trial court in making an equitable distribution. MacDonald v. MacDonald, 120 Utah 573, 236 P.2d 1066 (1951); Burnham v. Burnham, 716 P.2d 781 (Utah 1986). One such factor which may be properly considered is what money or property each party brought into the marriage. MacDonald at 1070.

In several fairly recent cases, the Utah Supreme Court has upheld a lower court's decision to award property to the party bringing it to the marriage. In Humphreys v. Humphreys, 520 P.2d 193 (Utah 1974), the Court upheld the trial court's decision to reimburse Plaintiff's \$3,400, which she used for a down payment on the parties' home. In

Jespersion v. Jespersen, 610 P.2d 326 (Utah 1980), the Court affirmed the trial court's decision to "permit plaintiff to withdraw from the marital property the equivalent of those assets plaintiff brought into the marriage." Jespersion at 328. And, in Georgedes v. Georgedes, 627 P.2d 44 (Utah 1981), the Court affirmed an award of the home and business to the Plaintiff, who brought both into the marriage, even though he had subsequently transferred title to both pieces of property into joint tenancy.

In the present case, it is undisputed that Defendant brought the home, acreage, stock, and washer/dryer into the marriage (Tr. at 19, lines 17-19, and Tr. at 33, lines 20-25). Plaintiff testified that the real property is presently worth \$40,000 (Tr. at 23, lines 3-5), but also admits that the property has not increased in value since the parties' marriage (Tr. at 56, lines 5-9). Plaintiff did not provide any basis for her valuation of the property. Defendant valued the property at \$26,000, based upon an appraisal performed two years prior to the divorce (Tr. at 58, lines 3-5). Plaintiff estimated that the property is currently valued at \$30,000 (Tr. at 59, lines 8-10). The court interpreted the evidence in the light most favorable to the Plaintiff when it found, based upon Defendant's testimony, that the property had increased in value by

\$4,000 (Findings at 4).

The fact that the lower court did not award any portion of the increased value of the land to Plaintiff was not an abuse of discretion. First, Plaintiff did not make "such a contribution to the increased value of [the] property that she would be entitled to share in that value in the property settlement." Georgedes at 45. Plaintiff's own testimony indicates that the parties only made approximately \$200 worth of improvements to the property during the marriage (Tr. at 23, lines 14-25; and Tr. at 24, lines 1-6).

Second, the award of the increased value of the property must be assessed in light of the total property and debt distribution between the parties. The majority of the personal property was distributed pursuant to stipulation (Tr. at 12, lines 13-25; and Tr. at 13, lines 1-5). No values were assigned to the property distributed pursuant to the stipulation. The personal property items in dispute were as follows: 1978 Ford truck, 1983 Ford car, motorcycle, camera, washer/dryer, and horse (Tr. at 12, lines 6-8). The court accepted Plaintiff's valuations of the property and found them to have the following values: 1978 Ford truck, \$1200 (Findings at 4); 1983 Ford car, \$3500 (Tr. at 30, lines 19-23); motorcycle, \$1300 (Tr. at 30, lines 24-25; and Tr. at 31, lines 1-4); camera, \$500 (Tr. at

28, lines 7-16); horse, \$800 (Tr. at 29, lines 3-6).

Plaintiff was not able to give a value on the washer/dryer, but she did testify that the appliances were eight years old (Tr. at 34, lines 5-9). The court awarded to each party those items which they brought into the marriage, including the Defendant being awarded the washer/dryer (Findings at 4: and Decree at 3). The court made the following distribution of the items acquired during the marriage of the parties. Plaintiff was awarded the car, motorcycle, and camera, and the inventory in her business, valued at \$3000 (Tr. at 52, lines 5-17). The combined value of the property awarded to Plaintiff is \$8300. Defendant was awarded the increased value of the property, the truck and the horse, having a combined value of \$6000.

In addition to the distribution of personal property, the court also distributed the debts of the parties. Plaintiff was ordered to pay the debt to Zion's Bank in the amount of \$6,000, which was secured by the car and motorcycle, and the debt on the lease for her business in the amount of \$2,700, for a total debt obligation of \$8,700. Defendant was ordered to pay the following debts: Fillmore Hospital, \$200; Nephi Hospital, \$3300; Payson Hospital \$220; Commercial Credit, \$1500; Scipio Garage, \$170; Valley Bank, \$1200, which was secured by the truck; and Eva Meeker,

\$3,000, for a total debt obligation of \$9,590. The debt to Eva Meeker, Defendant's grandmother, is a loan incurred for the purchase of the inventory for Plaintiff's gift shop (Tr. at 11, lines 4-10).

Finally, it should be remembered that the trial court allowed Plaintiff to remain in the home, rent free, for six months following the entry of the Decree of Divorce (Decree at 4).

Considering that Defendant received a smaller share of the property acquired during the marriage, and was ordered to pay a larger share of the family debts, it is difficult to understand Plaintiff's complaint that the trial court abused its discretion by making the property distribution it did.

II. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION IN BASING CHILD SUPPORT ON DEFENDANT'S FUTURE INCOME

The trial court has broad discretion in assessing the child support obligations of the parties. The child support amount should reflect the needs of the children and the parent's ability to pay. Woodward v. Woodward, 709 P.2d 303 (Utah 1985).

The trial court's decision in this case is most favorable to Plaintiff. Rather than simply basing child support on Defendant's current income, the court took into

consideration Defendant's work history, and allowed for an increase in child support when Defendant becomes employed. Thus, Plaintiff is spared the time and expense of petitioning the court to modify the child support amount at a later date should Defendant find employment which produces income approximating that customarily earned by him (Decree at 2-3). Contrary to Plaintiff's argument, the Decree does not indicate that Defendant's duty to pay child support will terminate when Defendant ceases to receive unemployment compensation. Of course, should Defendant's unemployment cease prior to his finding employment, he may petition the court for a modification based upon his change in circumstances. Likewise, should Defendant find employment whereby he earns more than he did historically, Plaintiff may petition the court for an increase in child support. The court retains continuing jurisdiction over the parties to review and revise the decree as circumstances may require. MacDonald at 1071.

Therefore, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in basing Defendant's child support payments on his present and predicted future incomes.

CONCLUSION

Plaintiff has failed to demonstrate that the trial

court abused its discretion in making the property distribution between the parties. Each party was awarded the property they brought into the marriage. Of the \$14,300 worth of assets acquired during the marriage, Plaintiff was awarded \$8,300 and Defendant was awarded \$6,000. Of the \$18,290 in marital debts, Plaintiff was ordered to pay \$8,700, and Defendant was ordered to pay \$9,590. If anything, Plaintiff received the advantage in the property distribution.

It was also to Plaintiff's advantage that the court allowed a provision for an increase in child support based on Defendant's future employment. In addition, Plaintiff is free to seek a modification of child support whenever she feels the circumstances warrant.

Therefore, Defendant requests that Plaintiff's appeal be dismissed and that he be awarded his costs herein.